# BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL

6.00 P.M. 13TH JULY 2010

PRESENT: Councillors Roger Sherlock (Chairman), John Whitelegg (Vice-Chairman),

Roger Dennison, Emily Heath, Tony Johnson and Elizabeth Scott

Apologies for Absence

Councillor Evelyn Archer

Also in Attendance (for Minute No. 12)

Jacqui Thompson, Chair of the LDLSP Management Group and Councillor

Stuart Langhorn, Vice-Chair of the LDLSP Management Group

Councillors June Ashworth, Abbott Bryning, Sarah Fishwick, John Gilbert and

Robert Redfern

Officers in Attendance:

Roger Muckle Corporate Director (Finance and Performance)

Richard Tulej Head of Community Engagement Service

Elizabeth Stokes Corporate Performance Manager Jane Glenton Democratic Support Officer

## 9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

### 10 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 8<sup>th</sup> June 2010 were signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

## 11 ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS AUTHORISED BY THE CHAIRMAN

There were no items of urgent business.

In accordance with the resolution passed at Council Business Committee that all Members be invited to attend Budget and Performance Panel meetings when LDLSP Thematic Group Chairmen are speaking in order to learn about the work of the Thematic Groups and how this relates to the Council's priorities (Minute No. 5 (1) 2010/11 refers), all Members had been invited to attend Budget and Performance Panel for the following item.

# 12 LANCASTER DISTRICT LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP (LDLSP)/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY (SCS) - ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT (2009/10)

The Panel received the Annual Performance Report (2009/10) from the Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership (LDLSP) in respect of delivering the Sustainable Community Strategy. The Chair of the LDLSP Management Group, Jacqui Thompson, Assistant

Director – North Lancashire Primary Care Trust, and Vice-Chair, Councillor Stuart Langhorn, were in attendance to present the report and to answer questions from Members.

The report provided a performance update for 2009/10 based on the end of year reports from the Thematic Groups and also provided the end of year reviews of current LSP funded initiatives and an update of the LDLSP Management Group proposals for the use of Performance Reward Grant (PRG) allocated to the LDLSP from the Lancashire Partnership.

It was reported that Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) priorities were being delivered and the potential use of PRG had been considered. The future development of the Board and Management Group and the recent appointment of an LSP Manager and two administrative assistants would enhance the way the Thematic Groups operated and increase the success of the LSP in delivering the SCS vision, whilst consolidating and embedding the Community Engagement and Performance Monitoring Strategies

Members were advised that the seven Thematic Groups had been asked to report progress by responding to two questions, namely how well are outcomes and improvements being delivered and what are the prospects for the future? It was reported that the Children and Young People Thematic Group, which was also the Local Children's Trust Partnership – Lancaster District, had not submitted a report. They were funded by a separate funding stream and their year end report was available on Lancashire County Council's website.

It was reported that the Thematic Groups had made significant progress in delivering the priorities assigned to them and the Second Homes monies had been used for the activities that had enabled delivery. It was noted that the year-end reports for the funded projects were available on the Council's website. Details of a selection of the projects were set out in the report.

Members were advised that the LDLSP faced unknown challenges over the next few years due mainly to the impact of the recession, a reduction in funding levels/provision of resources and the withdrawal of partners from partnership funding.

It was reported that following the recent changes of Government and the current economic situation, the LSPs had recently been informed that the second instalment of PRG would no longer be available. Lancaster City Council, as accountable body for the LDLSP, had confirmed that £478,384 had been received and the Management Group had agreed to target PRG funding at the issues identified as of most concern across Lancashire, being referred to as 'Big Ticket' issues: *Health Inequalities, Climate Change, Affordable Housing and Worklessness and the Economy*, adding a fifth one of *Community Cohesion*.

In 2010/11, there would be a refresh of the SCS and the PRG programme would be implemented. The LSP would seek to strengthen its performance management processes and increase its visibility amongst partners and the community.

The Chairman of the Panel asked for questions from Members to which the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the LDLSP Management Group responded.

#### Resolved:

- (1) That the Chair and Vice-Chair of the LDLSP Management Group be thanked for presenting the report.
- (2) That the Chair of the Children and Young People Thematic Group be requested to report to Budget and Performance Panel on the work undertaken by the Thematic Group in 2009/10 in respect of delivering the targets in the Sustainable Community Strategy.
- (3) That a standard end of year report format for use by the Thematic Groups be drawn up and adopted through liaison between the Budget and Performance Panel and the LDLSP Management Group.

#### 13 CONSIDERATION OF SUSTAINABLE STAFF TRAVEL PLAN UPDATE

The Panel received the report of the Corporate Director (Finance and Performance) to update Members on progress in considering the development of a sustainable staff travel plan.

It was reported that there was an action under the Climate Change priority in the Council's Corporate Plan to *deliver the appropriate actions from the Energy Savings Trust (EST) Green/Grey Fleet Review.* Included in the Fleet Review were opportunities for reducing staff travel for business and other purposes.

Members were advised that the Council did not have a specific staff travel plan but had been developing this area through other Council strategies and policies – for example, cycling demonstration town and access to services.

In order to deliver the Council's corporate priorities for Climate Change, an officer working group had been established, comprising cross service representation from key services and chaired by the Corporate Director (Finance and Performance), supported by the Council's Sustainability Co-ordinator.

The working group reported into the Climate Change Cabinet Liaison Group, which was chaired by Councillor Barry, and any resource issues were referred up to Cabinet for decision.

The officer working group was progressing delivery of the agreed priorities set out in the 5-year Climate Change Strategy, which was being co-ordinated through a number of subgroups that reported into the officer group, including the Green/Grey Fleet working group, which had met twice recently.

The Green/Grey Fleet working group had two main streams of work, these being green fleet issues that relate to the Council's operational fleet of vehicles and grey fleet issues that relate to staff travel in employee-owned vehicles, both for work purposes and non-council business travel (i.e. travel to work and home).

Work in respect of the Grey Fleet issues had mainly been with regard to developing a policy in respect of staff business travel, using recommendations from the EST's Fleet Review and the Council's existing practices and guidance notes.

Members were advised that work in respect of staff travel for non-council business travel was scheduled for later in the year. The sub-group had developed a framework for the draft policy for staff business travel, but this had still to be considered by the officer working group and management team before being referred to the cabinet liaison group.

The draft policy and proposals in respect of the recommendations from the EST Fleet Review would be considered at the next officer working group and reported to the September Cabinet Liaison Group, with any resource implications or changes to existing arrangements being referred to Cabinet for consideration as part of the annual budget process and JCC for staff consultation.

Councillor Whitelegg reported that as one of the biggest employers in the area, and with influence that extended from its own operations to the wider community, the Council should have in place a workplace travel plan in the two key areas of staff travel and council green and grey fleet.

He advised that a workplace travel plan was a long-term management strategy that delivered transport objectives and a coherent approach to transport management, and defined, for example, what the Council had done, what it intended to do and the resource implications.

The Department for Transport defined workplace travel plans as a package of measures produced by employers to encourage staff to use alternatives to single-occupancy car use.

The British Standards Institution (BSI) Publicly Available Specification (PAS) 500:2008 defined requirements for developing and implementing a workplace travel plan.

By applying the PAS it would be possible to define objectives and compare the effectiveness of the workplace travel plan as part of an organisational policy to manage transport impacts for the benefit of staff, the environment, corporate responsibility, reduction of congestion, better management of parking and reduction of pollution from motor vehicles as part of an air quality strategy.

Also reported at the meeting was a request received from Councillor Heath in connection with inviting the University's Travel Plan Co-ordinator to a future meeting of the Panel in connection with consideration of travel plans. Lancaster University had successfully implemented its own travel plans, but was reluctant to go further unless the City Council demonstrated its commitment to travel planning.

It was noted that whilst the officers of the Council have no mandate to develop a workplace travel plan, the work currently being undertaken by the Green/Grey Fleet subgroup in meeting the Council's Corporate Plan actions would ensure that all the aspects of a workforce travel plan would be considered and brought before Members.

#### Resolved:

(1) That Cabinet be requested to consider a workplace travel plan using the specifications contained in BSI PAS500:2008 and the definition of the Department of Transport, including identification of the budgetary implications of undertaking this work.

- (2) That progress in respect of staff travel for non-council business travel and progress in regard to resolution (1) be reported to the Panel's meeting on 30<sup>th</sup> November 2010.
- (3) That further updates and opportunities to comment on any proposed policies be built into the Panel's work programme, including referral of any resource implications arising from consideration of the draft policy and proposals in respect of the recommendations from the EST Fleet Review.
- (4) That Councillor Heath's request to consult with the travel co-ordinator from Lancaster University be referred to the officer working group.

# 14 ANNUAL REPORT

The Corporate Performance Manager circulated a briefing note on the Annual Report, which advised that the Annual Report was, in many ways, the companion document to the Corporate Plan, its main purpose being to take stock of performance in the last financial year.

The Annual Report detailed performance measures in place to help the Council achieve its objectives and corporate priorities, and fulfilled two main functions, namely to give a public account of the Council's performance and to provide a useful tool to support the annual Data Quality Audit of the Council's performance indicators.

In a letter from the Audit Commission, the Managing Director of Local Government, Housing and Community Safety had advised that work on the Comprehensive Area Assessment would be brought to a conclusion in view of the new government's recent announcement, and all work on updating the area assessment, including the Use of Resources judgment and Data Quality Audit, would cease.

It was reported that the statutory requirement to produce an Annual Report by 30<sup>th</sup> June had been relaxed by the government last year and, coupled with the cancellation of the Audit this year, there was no longer any urgency to produce the Annual Report to the same deadline.

An August publication date had therefore been set, which would allow officers to produce a more complete performance data set and actual financial position at year-end, and the Annual Report would be available for scrutiny by the Panel at its September meeting.

#### Resolved:

- (1) That the report be noted.
- (2) That the Annual Report be available for scrutiny by the Panel at its September meeting.

#### 15 WORK PROGRAMME

The Panel received the report of the Head of Democratic Services which updated Members regarding the work programme.

The report advised that at its meeting on 9<sup>th</sup> June 2010, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had resolved that, in light of the Member briefing on the restructure, the Budget and Performance Panel be requested to seek clarification as to the likely reduction in the Council's budget that the restructure will produce (Minute 6 (9) 2010/11 refers).

The Panel considered the referral from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and rejected the request on the basis that details had been reported to a previous meeting of the Panel.

Members noted the areas of work that would be considered at the Panel's meeting on 7<sup>th</sup> September, as set out in Appendix A to the report. It was reported that work was underway on the outstanding items in the Panel's work programme, which included the report on Invest to Save schemes that would provide a greater rate of return than Council investments and the development of whole life-cycle costing (WLCC) approaches by the Procurement Manager and benchmarking to progress through the levels set.

## Resolved:

- (1) That the referral from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be rejected on the basis that details have been reported to a previous meeting of the Panel.
- (2) That the following work programme details be approved:
  - (a) Presentation by the Head of Community Engagement Service regarding the community engagement work of his Service and the future management of Partnerships, Performance Projects and Programmes to the meeting on the 7<sup>th</sup> September 2010.
  - (b) Report by the Assistant Head (Partnerships) on Monitoring Delivery and Effectiveness of Service Level Agreement to the meeting on the 7<sup>th</sup> September 2010.
  - (c) Circulation of a briefing note by the Head of Financial Services on pension liabilities and the impact of these liabilities on the budgets of the Council up to and including 2014-15.
  - (d) Circulation of the report to Cabinet on Williamson Park and presentation of a further report to the meeting on 7<sup>th</sup> September 2010.
  - (e) Scrutiny of the Annual Report at the meeting on 7<sup>th</sup> September 2010.
- (3) That work in respect of staff travel for non-council business travel and progress in regard to a workplace travel plan, using the specifications contained in BSI PAS 500:2008 and the definition of the Department of Transport, including identification of the budgetary implications of undertaking this work, be reported to the Panel's meeting on 30<sup>th</sup> November 2010.

Chairman

(The meeting ended at 7.35 p.m.)

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact Jane Glenton, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582068, or email jglenton@lancaster.gov.uk